Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

1

21

LEGAL STATUS AND PRINCIPAL ACTMITIES

Muscat insurance Company SAOG (formerly known as Muscat National Holding Company SAOQ),
(‘the Company”) is registered as a public joint stock company in the Sultanate of Oman. The Company
was formerly opereting as an investment company wheraby Its license was amended by Capltal
Markat Authorty (CMA) to underwrite general insurance and life essurance busineas from 17 August
2017, vide the CMA’s administration decision E/59/2017 dated 30t August 2017,

The Company was restructured In the year ended 31 December 2017 through the merger of its two
fully owned subsidiaries in order to comply with provisions of the Insurance Companies Lew of 1979,
as amended, to bring the share capital of the Company to RO 10 miliion by August 2017, Accordingly,
the subsidiaries Muscat Insurance Company SACC ("MIC") and Muscat Life Assurance Company
SAOC ("MLAC") were merged with the Company by transferring their assets and liablities, as well as
the licenses to underwrite portfollo of general and iife insurance business.

BASI3 OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS

Basls of preparation

The financiel statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financlal Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), Interpretations
issued by the Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC), the relevant
requirements of the Commercial Compeanles Law of the Sultanate of Oman, as amended, the
Insurance Companies Law, 1879 (as amended), and the provisions for disclosure related to insurance
companies issued by the Caplital Market Authortty.

The Commercial Companles Law of the Sultanste of Oman promulgated by Royal Decres No. 18 /
2019 (the Commercial Companias Law’) was lssuad on 13 February 2019 and cams Into force on 17
Aprll 2019.

The new law hae replaced the provisions of the Commaerclal Companies Law promulgated by the
Royal Dacrea No. 4 / 74 and subsequant amendments, thereof. In accordance with Article 3 of the
Royal Dacres No. 18 / 2019, the commercial companies in axistence on the date of enforcement of
the new law, shall comply with its provisions within a yaar from the date of enforcement of the law.

The financial statements are presented in Omani Rials.
New and amended IFRS adopted by the Company

The financial statements have been drewn up based on accounting standards, inferpretations and
smendments effective at 1 January 2018.

The Company has adopted the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
Intemational Accounting Standards Board and the Intemnational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Cemmittee, which were affective for the current accounting period:

¢ [FRS 18 'Leases’

IFRS 18, ‘Leases’ Issued in January 2016 provides a single lesses accounting model, requiring
lessess to recognise assets and liabllities for all laases unless the lease term is 12 months or less
or the underlying asset hae a low value, Lassors continue to classify leases as operating or
finance, with lessor accounting substantially unchanged from IAS 17.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS (Continued)

22 New and amended IFRS adopted by the Company (Continued)

IFRS 16 'Lesses’ (Continued)
Lessee:

As a lessse, the Company has entered into various lease arrangements for Its branch offices. The
Company has adopted the limited retrospective approach avallable under IFRS 18 with the
cumulative Impact of intially applying the standard, if any, being recognised as an adjustment to
the opening retained earings at 1 January 2019, Accordingly, comparstive information has not
been restated.

Applying IFRS 186, for existing lease arangemente, the Company has recognized right-of-use
asset and leese llabilty in the statement of financial poshion, belng initially measured at the
present value of the future iease payments, with the right-of-use asset acjusted by the amount of
any prapald or accrued lease payments. The Company has also recognised depreciation of right-
of-use asset and interest on the lease llabllity In the statement of comprehensive income.

For short-term leasas (leasa term of 12 months or less} end leases of low-value assets, If any, the
Company has opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-ine basis as pemitted by IFRS
18.

The Company has used the following practical expediants to leases previously classified as
operating leases applying IAS 17:

¢ The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfoiio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics.

e The Company has used hindsight when determining the legsa term when the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the Iease.

The weighted average increments! borrowing rate applled to lease liability on 1 January 2018 Is
8%. The laase llabliity measurad at 1 January 2019 was determined as follows:

1 January 2019

RO
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 220,561
Effect of discounting the above (11.842]
Lease llabllity at 1 January 2019 217,819

The Company has recognised right-of-use asset of RO 252,224 and lease ilabllity of RO 217,618
upon transition o IFRS 16 &t 1 January 2018,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS {Continuad)

22 New and amended IFRS adopted by the Company (Continued)

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Contlnued)

Lessor:
The Company anters Into leage amangements as a lessor for its Investmant propertias.

Leages for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever
the terms of the leasa transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lesses,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classifled as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leasas is recognised on a straight-line basls over ths term of the
relevant lease. Inltlal direct costs Incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the camylng amount of the leased asset and recognised on a stralght<ine basis over the
lease term. )

Other than IFRS 16, the Management belleves the adoption of the following amendments and
standards, has not had any material Impact on the recogniion, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of itema in the financial statements for the current accounting period.

- IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment’ issued in June 2017 clarifies how to apply
the racognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' when there is
uncartainty over income tax treatments.

- Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' issued in October 2017
clarifies that entities acoount for long-tarm Interests in an associate or joint venturs, to which
the equity method is not applied, using IFRS 8.

- Annual amendments to IFRSs (2015 - 2017 cycle) issued in December 2017 include
amendments to IFRS 3 'Business combinations, IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes' and IAS 23 ‘Borrowing
cosaty’.

- Amendments tc IAS 18 ‘Employee benefits’ issued in February 2018 require an entity to uss
the updated assumptions from the ne-measurement of net defined benefit liability or asset to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after
the change to the plan.

2,3 Nsw and amended IFRS which ars in lsasus but not yet sffective

At the end of the reporting period, the following significant new and revised standards were in lssue
but not yet effective:

IFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts' issued in May 2017 establishes principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar
principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and Investment contracts with discretionary
participation featuras issued.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
____rinancial statémer U8 yoar ended 41 Uecember cU19

Notes to the financial statements
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS {Continuad)
2.3 New and amended IFRS which are In {ssus but not yet effective

* IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts’ {continued)
Under IFRS 17, contracts are meesured using the building blocks of:

— discounted probability-weighted cash flows;

- an explicit risk adjustment; and

- & contractual service margin ("CSNF) representing the uneamed profit of the contract which Is
recognised as revenua over the coverage period.

The standard allows a choice betwsen recognising changes In discount rates elther in the income
statement or directly In other comprehensive Income. The cholce Is likely fo reflect how Insurers
account for their financial assets under IFRS 9.

An optional, simplified premium allocation approach Is permitied for the liability for the remaining
coverage for short duration contracts, which are often written by non-life Insurers.

There is a modification of the general measurement model called the ‘variable fes approach' for
certain contracts written by Iife Insurers where policyholders share in the retums from underying
ftems. When applying the variable fee approach the entity’s share of the fair value changes of the
underlying itams is Included In the coniractual service margin. The results of Insurers using this
modei are therefore likely to be less volatlle than under the general model.

The new rules will affect the financial stetements and key performance indicators of all entities that
Issue Insurance contracts or investment contracts with discrefionary particlpation featurss.

IFRS 17 I8 tentatively expeciad to be sffective from 1 January 2022, with comparative figures
required. The Company has performed an Initlal Impact asgeesment of IFRS 17 and expects that
the new standard will result in an Important change to the accounting policies for insurance
contract labilities of the Company. However, the Company is in the process of determining the
impact on the profit and total equity, which cannot be eccurately quantifled at the end of the
reporting period. I[FRS 17 has introduced additional quantitatve and qualitative disclosure
requiremants including the amounts recognised in the finenclal statements, significant judgments
made whan applying IFRS 17 and the nature and extent of risks from Insurance contracts.

¢ [FRS 8 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 8, ‘Financlal Instruments’ outlines the recognition, measurement and derecognition of
finencial assets and financial liebllities, the Impalrment of financlal assets and hedge accounting.
Financlal essets are to be messured at amortised cost, fair value through profit and loss or fair
value through other comprehensive income, with an irrevocable option on initial recognition to
recognise some equity financlal essets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
impairment model in IFRS 9 moves to cne that is based on expected credit losses rather than the
IAS 39 incurred lose model. The derecognition principles of I1AS 39, ‘Financial Instruments;
Recogniticn and Measurement' have been transferred to IFRS 9,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS (Continued)

23 New and amended IFRS which are In Issue but not yet effective {Continued)

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (Continued)

The Company plans to defer the application of IFRS 9 until the éffective date of the new Insurance
contracte standard, IFRS 17, effective for annual periods beginning on or efter 1 January 2022 by
applying the temporary exasmption from applying IFRS © as introduced by the Amendments to
IFRS 4 as detalled below:

Amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Insurance Contracts’ regarding the Implementation of IFRS 9,
‘Financial Instrumsants’

In September 2016, the amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Insurance Contracts’ were igsued regarding the
implementation of IFRS 8, ‘Financial Instruments’.

The amendments infroduce two sitemative approaches for entities issuing Insurance contracts
within the scops of IFRS 4, notably a ‘temparary axemption' and an ‘overlay approach’.

Under the ‘overiay approach’, an insurer reclassifies from profit or loss to other comprehensive
income any changes In the falr value of financial assets heid in respect of an sctivity that Is
connected with contracts within the scopa of IFRS 4, If these changes are recognised In profit or
loas under IFRS 9, but not under IAS 39,

The ‘temporary exemption' enables entities to defer the Implemeantation date of IFRS 9 for annual
pericds beginning after 1 January 2022 at the lateat. Accordingly, entities are allowsd 1o confinue
to apply IAS 38 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, inetead of adopting IFRS
2 ‘Financial Ingtruments’, if they meet the following criteria:

¢ the inaurer has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9, and

» the Insurer's activities are predominantly connectad with Insurance on its annual reporting date
that immediately precedes 1 April 2016. The following tests have to be satisfied:

- the camying amount of liabiliies arising from contracts within the scope of IFRS 4 is
gignificant compared to the total camrylng amount of all Its liabllitles, and
the totel carrying amaount of an insurer’s liabilities connected with insurance |s compared to
the total carrying amount of all Its liabiilties:

» if the percentage is greater than 80%, the Insurer's activitles are predominantly
connected with insuranca.

» [f the percentage Is less than or equal to 90%, but greater than 80% and the Insurer
does not engage in a significant activity unconnected with insurance, Its activities are
predominantly connected with insurance. Otherwise, the activiies are not predominantly
connected with insurance.

e jif the percentage iz less than or sgual to 80%. the Insurers activities ara not
predominantly connected with Insurance.

The Managemsnt has performed an assessment of the above optlons avallsble and concluded
that:

¢ IFRS 9 has not besn adopted by the Company praviously; and
» [ta aclivities are predominantly connectad with Insurance.

In view of above, the Management has appliad the temporary examption in its reporting for the
current year ended 31 Deceruler2079=-
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED IFRS (Continued)
New and amended IFRS which are In lasus but not yet effective {Continued)

* Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework In IFRS wers Issued In March 2018
and are effactive for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020.

= Amendments to IFRE 3 ‘Business Comblinations’ issued In October 2018 amend tha Appendix A
‘Defined terme’, the application guidance and the illustrative examples of IFRS 3. The
amendments are applicable for annual periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020.

» Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financlal Sistements’ and IAS 8 'Accourting Policies,
changes in accounting estimates and errors’ issued in October 2018 clarify the definition of
‘material and align the definltion used in the Conceptual Framework and the standerds. The
amendments are applicable for annual perlods commencing on or after 1 January 2020.

e Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial instruments’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures'
issued in September 2018 modIfy some spacific hedge accounting requirements 1o provide rellef
from potential effects of the uncertainty caused by the inter-bank offerad rate reform. In addition,
the amendments raquire entities to provide additional information about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are applicable for annual
periods commencing on or after 1 January 2020, '

The Management believes the adoption of other amendments, which are In Issue, but not yet effective
ig not likely to have any material Impact on the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosurs
of items in the financial statements for future periods.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In preparing the financial statements, the Management Is required to make estimates and
assumptions which affact reported income and expenses, assets, llabilitles and related disclosures.
The use of available information and application of judgement based on historical experience and
other factors are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results In the future could differ from
such estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting
eetimates are recognised in the parod in which the estimate Is revised and in any future periods
affected. In particular, estimates that Involve uncertasinties and Judgemente which have significant
effect on the financial statements Include the following:

o Quistanding claims including IBNR

Estimates have to be made both for the expacted uimate cost of ¢laims reported at the end of the
reporting period and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported ("IBNR™)
at the end of the reporting period.

The Company has a concentration in motor policies Issued. The Management believes that the
llablity arising out of third party bodily injury claims, In particular, cannot be precisely estimated.
Nevertheless, the Management continuosly monifors the development of compensation ¢laims on
an annugl basis and makes adequate provision for thess Insurance llabllities.

in case of non motor general insurance policies issued, the loegs estimation where events occur is
usually based on extemal Independent surveyors’ reports obtained progressively. The non motor
general insurance is predominantly ceded out and the risk retention is low.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

3

Qutstanding claims including IBNR (Continued)

In respect of claims under general and Ife Insurance policles, estimates are required to be made
for the expected ultimate cost of reported claims at the end of the reporting period as well as for
the ultimate cost in respect of claims IBNR st the end of the reporitng period. The Management
uses the Initlal value of the clalm provided by the surveyor for the expected uliimate cost of claims
reported at the financial position date. However, for IBNR, the Management relles on an
independent actuary to perform a review of the reserve for IBNR based on the historical data of
clalms and premium development. The primary fechnique adopted by the Management In
estimating the cost of notified and IBNR claims Is that of ueing past claim settiement trends to
predict future claim setement trends,

At each reporting date, prior yaar clalms estimates are reassessed for adequacy and changes are
made to the provision. General Insurance claims provisions are not discauntad for the ime value of
maoney.

Future benefit payments and premiums arising from long term Insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term Insurance contracts ls dependent on estimates
made by the Company. Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of the
years in which the Company is exposed fo risk. The Company basas these estimates on standand
industry and national mortality tables that reflect recent historical mortality experience, adjusted
where appropriate fo reflect the Company's own experience. For contracts that insure the risk of
longevity, appropriate but not excessively prudent allowance Is made for expected mortality
improvemants. The estimated number of deaths determine the value of the benefit payments and
the value of the valuation premiums. The maln source of uncartainty is that epidemics such as
AIDS, SARS and wide-ranging Iifestyls changes, such as in eating, smoking and exarcise habits,
could result in future mortality being significantty worse than In the past for the age In which the
Company has significant exposure to mortality risk. However, continuing improvements in medical
care and social conditions could result In improvements in longevity in excess of those allowed for
in the sstimates used 1o datermine the liability for confracts where the Company Is exposed to
lengevity risk.

Liabiiity adequacy fest

The Compeny uses best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims hendling and
administration axpense, as well as investment income from the assets backing such liabilities in
evaluating the adequacy of the llabillty. Any Inadaquecy I immediately charged to the statement of
income by establishing an unexpired risk provision.

Fair value of unquoted invesiments available for saie

For the unquoted investments avallable for sale, the Management estimates the falr valus by using
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm'e length transactions, reference to other
Instrumants that are substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysie. Where It Is
impractical to usa such techniques, the Company uses the acjusted net asset value or par value of
instruments as appropriate.

Impairment of investments availabie for sale

The Management determines that invesiments available for sale are impaired when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline In the value of the investment below Its cost. The
determination of whal is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In addition, Impairment may be
appropriate when there is avidence of deterloration in the financiai health of the investee, industry
and sector performance, cash fows=sr=sa,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continuad)

Impairment of premium and ingsurance balance recsivable

The Management reviews the premium and insurance recaivable ageing on a periodic basls. In
case of difficult and unsecured debtors whose outstanding Is In excess of the credit period
allowed, regular follow up is made to collect the same. Wherever necessary, legal cptions are also
considered. The Management astimates tha allowance for credit losses based on percentages
applled on the overall agelng enalysls and a review of case to case debtors.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been consistently applied in dealing with items considered
material to the Company’s financial statements:

a)

b)

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by
the measurement at falr value of Investments carrled at fair value through profit or loss and
avallable for sale Invastments.

The statement of financial position has baeen prepared in order of liquidity.
Insurance contracts

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts issued by the
Company do not contain any discreflonary particlpation features which will antitie the contract
holder to receive additional benefils or bonuses.

Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts are classlfied into two main categories, short term and long term Insurance
confracts.

Short term insurance confracts

Short term insuranca coritrects are principally divided into moler and non-motor general insurance
and health and group Iife insuranca by the Company.

Motor insurance in the Sulianate of Oman is govemned by law and it is compulsory far all vehlclas
to have a minimum third party cover. The Company also Issues comprehensiva motor pelicies.
Such motor policies issued by the Company cover damages to vahicle due to storm, tampest,
flood, fire, theft and personal accident. Speciic motor policles are also issued to include coverage
outsida the Sultanate of Oman.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
4  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b) Insurance contracts {Continued)
8 in Continu

The non-motor ineurance category comprises fire, marine, englneering, workmen compansation
and general accident.

Health and group life insurance contracts protect the Compseny’s customers from the
conseguences of avants such as death or disability that would affect the abllity of the customer or
his / her dependents to maintain their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits pald on
occurrence of the specified Insurance avent ara elther fixed or linked to the extent of the econcmic
loss suffered by the policyholder. There are no maturity or surrender benefiis.

These contracts insure events assoclated with human life (for example death, or disability) over a
long duretion,

Liabilitles for contractual benefits that are expacted to be Incurred in the future are recorded when
the premiums are recognised based on actuarial valuation. The llabllities are racalculated at each
reporting date using the assumptions established at inception basad on the actuarial valuation.

Bensfits payable to contract holders are recorded as an expense when they are Incurred.
Policy acquisition cosls

All commissions and other acquisition costs related lo securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts am racognised as expanses when Incurred.

Pramiums sarned

Gross premium represents the tofal business written during the year and are recognised as
revenue (premium} at the time of entering Into the insurance contract. Uneamed premiums
represent the proportion of premiums written relating to perlods of Ingurance subsequent to the
reporting date. Unearmed premium reserve {UIPR) for all classes of general insurance is calculated
using 1/365 method for the year. For life (Iife and medical) Insurance contracts, an appropriate
actuarial reserve that Is determined annually by an independent actuary Is maintained.

Commissions eamned and pald
Commissions eamed and peid are recognised at the time policles are written considaring the short
term nature of the insurance contracts.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)

d)

Claim end loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statemant of Income as incurred based on
the estimated liability for compensation owed to coniract holders or third parties damaged by the
contract holdars. They include diract and Indirect claims setiement costs and arise from events
that have occurred up fo the reporting date even if they have not yet been reporied to the
Company. The Company does not discount its llabillties for unpald claims. Liabillties for unpsaid
clalms are estimated using the Input of assessments for individual cases raported to the Company
and statisfical analysis for the claims incurred but not reported and to estimate the expected
ultimate cost of more complex claims that may be affected by extemal factors such as court
decisions.

Provisions for reported claims not peld at the reporting date are made on the basis of Indlividual
case estimates. In additlon, & provision bagsed on Management's judgment and the Company's
prior experience Is maintained for the cost of settling clalms incurmed but not reported at the
reporting date, Any difference between the provisions at the reporting date and settlements and
provislons for the following year is Included In the undenwriting account for that year.

Safvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some Insurance contracts permit the Company to sell a {(usually damaged) vehicle or a properly
acquirad in settling a claim (i.e. salvage). The Company may aiso have the right to pursue third
partles for payment of some or all costs (l.e. subrogation).

Estimetes of salvage recoveries are Included as an allowance in the measurement of the inaurance
llability for claims, and salvaged vehiclas or properfy acquired are recognised in other assats when
the liabliity Is seftled unless disposed-off. The allowance Is the amount that cen ressonably be
recovered from the disposal of the vehicle or property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also consldered as an allowance In the measurement of tha
insurance liability for claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability is settlad. The
allowance is the assessment of the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the action
against the liable third party.

Liablity adequacy test

At each reporting date, the Company assessas whather Hs recognised insurancs llabllijes are
adaquate using curent estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. K that
assessment shows that the carrylng amount of its Insurance liabllities is inadequate In the light of
estimated future cash flows, the entire deflclency is Immediately recognised in the statement of
income and an unexpired risk provision is created.

Liabliities for contractual benefits that are expected io be incumed In the future are recordad when-
tha premiums are recognised based on actuarial valuation. The liabilities are recalculated at each

statement of reporting date using the assumptions established &t inception based on the actuarial

valuation,

At each reporting date, a liablliity adequacy test Is performed, to ensure the adaquacy of uneamed
premiums. Any inadequacy would be immediately charged 1o the statement of comprehensive
incoms by aatablishing a premium deficlency provision.

An amount (mathematical actuarlal reserve) Is determined by an Independsnt actuary on an annual
basis reflecting the unexpired risk for life business undarwritten. A contingency reserve Is also
established in accordance with the insurance Companies Law of Oman.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAQOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

e e I e ——— e ——————————— . ST e
Notes to the financial statements
4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

a)

In order to minimlee financial exposure from large claims, the Company enters Into agreements
with other parties for reinsurance purposes. Premlume ceded and claims relmbursed are presented
on & gross basis. Premiums on relnsurance assumed are recognised as revenue in the sama
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business.

The benefits to which the Company Is entitlad under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term belances due from reinsurers (classifled
within insurance recelvables), as well as the reinsurance portion of gross claime outstanding
including IBNR and unexpired rlek reserve that are dependent on the expected claims and bensfits
ariging under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Claims recelvable from reinsurers are
estimated In a manner consistent with the claim liability and in accordance with the relnsurance
contract These are shown as assets in the statemant of financlal position until the Company pays
the claim. Once the clalm s paid, the amount due from the reinsurer in connection with the paid
claim Is fransfermed to 'Insurance recelvable’.

Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance confract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense when due, net of commission Incoma which
represents Income earned from reinsurance companies.

The Compeny regularly assesses Iis reinsurance assets for impairment. If there Is objective
evidencs that the relnsurance aeset ls Impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the
relnsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impalrment loss In the statement
of comprehensive income. The Company gathers tha objactive evidence that a relnsurance asset
is impaired using the same process adopted for insurance and other receivables. Tha impalmment
loss Is also calculated following the same method as used for Impairment of other financial asssts.

Premlium and Insurance recalvables

Premium and insurance receivables are Initially recognised at falr value and subsaquently are
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methad less Impalrment losses, if any. A
provision for Impairment of premlum and Insurance recelvables |s established when there Is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts dus according to the
original terms of racelvables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financlal rearganisation, and default or delinquency In payments are
considered indicators that the premium and insurance receivables are impalred. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset's camying amount and the present velue of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rats. The carrying amount of the asset Is
reduced through the uss of an allowance account and the amount of the provision Is recognised In
the statement of Income within ‘general and administration expenses’. When premium and
insurance recelvable Is uncollectable, It Is written off against the aliowance account for premium
and insurance recelvables. Subsequent recoveries of amaunts previcusly written off are credited
against ‘general and administration axpansas’ in the statement of income.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

d

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h) Investments

0

investments avallable for sale

Investments avallable for sale are intanded to be held for an indefinite period of time, but may be
sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes In equity prices. Investments avallabla for
sale are valued at fair value wheru it can be rellably eatimated. Gains or losses are recognised in
the etatement of changes in equity as fair value reserve’ In the perlod in which they arise and are
recognised as other comprehensive Income in the statement of comprehensive income. When the
investments available for sale are disposed or the carrying emount of the investment Is impalred,
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in the statement of changes In equity Is transferred to the
statemant of income.

Held-to-rmaturity Investments

Held-fo-maturity investments are non - derlvative financlal assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixad maturities that the Management has the positiva intention and abllity 1o hold to
maturity. Subsequent fo Initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments ere measured st
amortised cost using the effective intarest method less any impalment.

Investments at felr value through profit or loss

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are acquined principally for the purpose of bensfitting
from ehort-term fluctuations in price. They are inktially recognised at cost and are subsequently
remeasurad to falr value. Fair valuss of quoted inveatments are determined with reference to the
closing prices in organized financlal markets at the end of the reporting perlod. Galns or losses
arising from changes In the falr vafues are accountad in the statement of income. Reallzed gains
on sals of investments are determined by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
camying value and are accounted in the statament of incoma.

Dividend and inferest income
Dividend income from Investments is accounted when the right to recelve payment is established.
Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

Fair value measurement

The Company hes classified fair value measurements on a recurring basis using a far value
hlerarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used In making the measurements. The falr
value hierarchy has the following levels:

- quoted prices (unadjustad) In active markets for Identical assets or llabilities (Leval 1);

- inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assst or
llabillty, aither directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectiy (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and

- inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
Inputs) (Lavel 3).

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of the
investment securties,
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Muscat insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuad)

4

{) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
and cash, including deposits with an original maturity period of 3 months or less from the data of
acquisition, net of bank borrowings, if any.

Financlal asasts

Financlal assets are recognized when the Company has become a party to the confractual
pravisions of the instrument. Financlal assets are recognised and derecognized on the trade date
when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Impaimeant

Financial assels

At the end of sach reporting periad, the Management assessas If there Is any objective evidence
indicating impalment of financlal assets. An impalrment loss, if any, arrived at as a diffarence
betwesn the carmying amount and the recoverabla amount, Is recogniged in the statement of
Income. The recoverable amount represents the present value of axpected future cash flows
diacounted at the original effactive interast rate.

In the case of equity Investments classified as avallable-for-gale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the felr value of the security below Its cost is also evidence that the aseels are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-gale investments, the cumulative loss = measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current falr value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised In equity is removed from equity and recognised In the
statement of comprehensive Income. Impalrment losses recognised In the statement of
comprehensive income on such equity instruments are not reversed through the statement of
comprehensive income.

An impeirment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event ooourring efter
the impalrment lose was recognised. For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal
Is racognised In the statement of Incoma.

Non-finencial assels

At the end of each reporting period, the Management assesses if there is any indication of
Impairment of non-financlal aseels. f an indication exists, the Management estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset and recognises an Impalmant loss in the statement of income.
The Management also asseasas if there is any Indication that an Impalrment Ioss recognised In
prior years no longer exists or has reduced. The resultant impairment reversals are recognised
immediatsly in the statement of income.

m) Offecting

Financial assets and financial liabillies are only offeet and the net amount reported In the
statement of financlal position when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised
amounts and the Company Intends to slther settle cn a net basis, or o realise tha asset and settle
the liablility simultaneously.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4

n}

o)

P}

Property and equipment

items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and Impeirment
losses. Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having diffarent
useful livas, they are accounted for as separate ltems of property and equipment. Following inltial
recognition at cost, expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and
equipment which Increases the future economic bensfits embodied In the iem of property and
equipment is capitalisad. All other expenditures are recognised in the statemant of income a8 an
expense as incumred,

Items of property and equipment are derecognisad upon disposal or when no future economic
beneilt is expected 1o arise from the continued use of the asset. Any galn or loss arielng on de-
recognition of the asset is included in the statement of income in the year the Item is derecognized.

Freehold land is not depreciated as It is deemed to have an Indefinits useful life. Capltal work In
progrese Is not depreciated. The cost of property and equipment Is expenssd by equal annual
instalments over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets
for the calculstion of depreciation are as follows:

Yeoars
Buildings 15-25
Furndtura ard aguipment B
Computer hardwara and software 5
Motor vehicles 5

Investment property

Investment properties comprise commercial bulldings and lands held for rental or capital
epprecietion and accounted under the cost model. Investment properties are measured inkially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognidon, investment properties are
stated et cost lasas accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, if any. Rental
income on investment properties Is racognized In the statement of income. Any galn or loss arising
on disposal of an investment property is also recognised in the statement of Income.

Capital work-in-progress is not depreclated. All expendlture Incumed on enginesring, design work
and cosis directly attributable to the project engineering, procurement and construction /
installation are treated as capltal work in progress untll such time the assets are put to usa, when
these will ba allocated tc investment properties.

The Investment properties are depreciated over thelr estimated useful lives of 15 to 25 years.
Freahold land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an Indefinits usaful life.

Intangible assets

Intanglble asest ie reported at cost less accumulated amortization end Impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is charged on a stralght line basls over the estimated useful life. The estimated useful
Iife and the amortization method are reviewed at tha end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes [n estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Tha intangible asset pertains
to software license and is amortised over a period of five years.

intenglble asset in progress (software under implementation) la siatad at cost and not amortised.
These are transferred to specific asaests when they are ready for use.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

~ Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

q) Taxsatlon

1)

Taxation ie provided for In accordance with the Sultanate of Oman's flacal regulations.

Deferred taxation la provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at the reporting
date. It is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when it Is anticipated
the liabilities will be settled, and is based on the rates {and laws) that have bean enacted at the
end of the raporting period.

Deferred tax assete are recognized in relation to camy forward loeses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it Is probable that future taxable profits will be achleved.

Accruals and other payables

Liabilitles are recognized for amounts to be paid in future for goods or services received, whether
billed by the suppller or not.

Pravisions

A provision is recognized In the stetement of financlal posltion when the Company has a legal or
constructive abligation as a result of a past event and It Is probable that an outfiow of economic
bensfils will be required to settie the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are detarmined
by discounting the expecied fulure cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Employees’ end of service banefits

Payment Is made o Omeni Govermment's Social Security Scheme as per Royal Decree number
72/91 (as amended} for Oman| employees. Provislon s made for amounts payable under the
Sultanate of Oman's Labour Lew as per Royal Decrse number 3572003 {as amendad) applicable
to non-Omanl employees’ accumulated periods of service at the end of the reporting period,

Foreign currancy transactions

Transactions denominated in forelgn cummencles are translated into Rlals Omani and recorded at
rates of exchange ruling at the data of the transaction. Liabilities denominaled In foreign currencies
are transiated into Rlals Omani at exchange ratas ruling on the end of the reporting period.
Foreign exchange diffarences arising on franslation are racognissd in the statement of income.

Dividends

The Board of Directors recornimends to the shareholders the dividend to be pald out of profite. The
Directors take Into account appropriate parametars including the requiremants of the Commercial
Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, and other relevant directivas issued by CMA while
recommending the dividend. Dividend distribution to the shareholders Is recognized as a Habllity
only in the period In which the dividends are approvad by the shareholders.

Operating segmant

An operating sagment ls component of the Company that engagas In business activities from
which it may eam revenues and incur expenses. The results of the operating segments are
reviewed by the Management and Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be
allocatad to the sagment and assess lis parformance, and for which discrete financial information
is available. The Group has two reportable segmaents that of general and life Insurance business.
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Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4

)

Directors’ remuneration

The Company follows the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman, and other latest
relevant dlrectives issued by CMA, in regard to determination of the amount o be paid as
Directors’ remuneration. Directors’ remuneration is charged to the statement of Income in the year
to which they relate.

Loasas

Lesses

Poiley spplicable from 1 Jenuary 2019

Tha Company leases its branch premises under various leasing arrangements. Contracts may
contaln both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relstive stand-alone prices unless
It has elected not to separate leasa and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as
a single lease component.

Leases are recognisad as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liabllity at the date at which
the leased asset Is available for use by the Company. Lease liablities Include (wherever
applicable) the net present value of the following lease payments:

¢ fixed paymenis (including In-substance fixed payments), less any leass incentives receivable
« variable lease payment that are based on an Index or & rate, Initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date
amounts expecied to ba payable by the Company under residual velue guarantess
the exercise price of & purchase optlon if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise the
option, and
+ penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exerclsing that
option. ) ‘

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extenslon options are also included In the
maasurement of the llabllity. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate Implicit In
the leasa. If that rate cannot be readlly determined, the Company's incremental barrawing rate is
used,

Laasa payments are allocated batween the principal and interest. The Inferest Is charged to the
statement of income over the leasa period 8o as {o produce 2 constant periedic rate of Interest on
the remalining balancs of the liabillty for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost compriging the following:

¢ the amount of the initial measurement of lease llability

= any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received

+ any Initial direct costs, and

+ resforation costs, if applicable.

Right-of-usa assets are generally depreciaied over the shorter of tha asset's useful lifie and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company is reascnably cerisin to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful ilfa.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
y) Leases (Continued)

Payments assoclated with short-tenn leases and of low-value asssts are recognised on & straight-
line basis as an expense in the statement of income.

Policy applicable prior 1 January 2019

The operating lsase payments are charged to the statement of Income on a straight line basis,
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattem of the beneflt.

Lessor

Leasa Income from oparating leasas whare the Company Is a lessor Is recognised In income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtalning an operating leass
are added to the carrving amount of the underying asset and recognised ae expense over the
leage term on the same basls as lease income. The respectiva leased assets are included In the

staternant of financlal position based on thelr nature.

UNDERWRITING RESULTS

Note 2018 2018

RO RO

Gross wiitten premiums arising from insurance
contracts Issuad 18,450,316 18,587,717
Movament in gross uneamed premium reserve 12.280.720) 3323 565
Insurance premium revenue samad 8 b 16,189,598 21 911 682
Premium ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts issued {11,476,265) {10,749,48T)
Movemnaent in reinsurance share of unsamed
premlum reserve - 2,845 934 (3,580.852)
Insurance premium ceded to relnsurers 8b) (8,830,331) (14,330,338
Net premium revenue sarmed 6b) 7,529, 2685 7.581,343
Gross claims settled 6 a) {11,706,674) {13,5679,180)
Reinsurance share of gross claims sattled Ga 5,602,404 8,708,132
Net claima settied {8,104,270) (4,871,018)
Movement In net outstanding claims (984,385) (979,831)
Net claims Incurmed (7,008,685 (5,850,848)
Commisggion incoms 985,066 1,652,088
Commission expense (168 527) (138,753
Net commiasion Income 830.539 1413345
Other underwriting Income 158,807 196 102
Underwriting resulte 1419047 3339041
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Notes to the financial statements
5  UNDERWRITING RESULTS (Continued)

The following further notes apply:

a) The general insurance snd life assurance net written premium and underwriting results before

b)

c)

reinsurance recoveries are analysed as follows:

Net writtert Underwriting resulis before
premlumg relnsurance racoveries
2019 2018 2019 2018
RO RO RO RO
Motor 5,319,227 8,711,197 (3,340,957) (2,794,921)
Graup life, group credit
and heatth 1,440,669 960,504 (738,545) (358,985)
Household and others 114,865 100,987 1,673,648 (1,847,935)
Marine 18,957 18472 (487,210) 197,157
Fire 20533 10,070 157,218 (85.545)
Total 8,974.051 7,838,230 (2,735.848) (4,890,228
The net claims ratio for ganeral insurance business is as follows:
2019 2018
% %
Motor g8 79
Fire 1] 81
Marine 218 (13}
Engineering, accident and others {11} 81
Overnall loss ratio for general Insurance business 94 79
The net claime ratio for life Insurance business is as follows:
2019 2018
% %
Company life 90 54
Medical 94 75
Overall loss ratio for life insurance business 93 70
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Notes to the financial statements
8  INSURANCE CLAIMS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

a) Insurance claims

2019
Relnsurers'

Gross shars Net

RO RO RO

Claims outstanding {note 28} 11,438,264 (8,859,084) 2,577,170

IBNR (note 28) B 2,418,532 (1,408,607} 1,009,925

Total at the beginning of the year 13,854,788 (10,267,591} 3,687,095

Insurance claims paid during the year {11,708,674) 5,602,404 {6,104,270)
Increase In llabliities arlsing from current

and prior perlod claims 11.125.388 (4.026.721) 7.008,665

Total et the end of the year 13.273 488 (5.692.008) 4 581,480

Claims outstanding (note 28) 10,244,452 (7,047,722) 3,106,780

IBNR {note 28) 2,958,016 (1,713,187) 1,244,820

AURR (note 28} 71,000 88 801 135801

Total at the end of the year 13,273,408 (8,692,008) 4,581,480

2018
Reinsurers’

Gross shars Net

RO RO RO

Claims outstanding {note 28) 12,161,017 (10,211,478) 1,949,538

IBNR (note 28) 1388000  (730.275) 857,725

Total at the beginning of the year 13,540,017  (10,941,753) 2,807,264

Insurance claims paid during the year (13,579,150} 8,708,132 (4,871,018)
Incraase In llabllities arising from current

and prior perlod claims 13884919 (8034070 5 860,849

Total at the end of the y=ar 13,854,786 (10,287 691} 3587.085

Claims outstanding (note 28) 11,438,254 (8,859,084) 2,577,170

IBNR {note 28} 2418532 (1,408.607) 1,008,825

Total at the end of the vear 13.854.736 (10,267.681) 3,587,085

Substantially all the claims are expacted to be paid within twelve months of the reporting date. The
amounts due from reinsurers are contractually due within three months from the date of

submisslon of accounts to the reinsurer.

The Company estimates its insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets principelly based on
historical experience. Estimates relating to claims are reviewed by an independent actuary. Clalms

requiring court or arbiiration declslons are estimated individually.
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Notes to the financial statements

L INSURANCE CLAIMS AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (Continued)

b) Provision for uneamed premium reserve and unexplred insurance risks is as follows

2019
Reinsurers’

Gross gshare Net

RO RO RO

Uneamed premium reserves 5,800,098 (2,412,678} 3,387,518
Mathematical reserves 1950357 (1.043227) = 91613
Total at the beginning of the year (note 28) 7,769,453  (3,455,805) 4,303,848
Gross written premiums during the year 18,450,318  (11,478,265) 8,974,081
Net (releage) / increasa during the vear 16.169,.696) 8.630,331 i 7.629 288)
Total at the and of the v ear (note 20) 10,050,173 (8,301,739) 3,748,434
Uneamed premium reserves 4,854 495 (2,071,023) 2,783,472
Mathematlcal reserves 5.186.678 (4,230.716) 964.962
Total at tha end of tha year (note 28) 10,050,173 (6,301,739) 3.748.434

2018
Reinsurers’

Groas share Net

RO RO RO

Unearnad preamium reserves 8,465,344 {5,672,633) 2,782,711
Meathematical resarves 26818074 (1,364,024 1,254,050
Total at the beginning of the year 11,083,418 (7.036,857) 4,048,761
Gross written premiums during the year 18,687,717 (10,749,487) 7,838,230

Net (release) / increase during the year 121.911.682) 14330339  (7.681,343)
Total at the end of the year (note 28) 7,759.453 (3,455,805 4,303,648
Uneamed premium reserves 5,800,006 (2,412,578) 3,387,518
Mathematical reserves 1959357  (1.043.227) 916,130
Total at the end of the year ( note 28) 7,759,453 (3,455,805 4,303,648

7 INVESTMENT INCOME (NET)
2019 2018
RO RO
Interest Income on deposits 548,348 671,370
Dividend income 278,057 203,797
Interest income on bonds 114,024 110,000
Amortisation of bonds {9,987) (9,818}
Income from investment property (net) [note 22 c)] 73,080 70,635
Other Investmeant incoms 14,000 14,000
Unrealised loss on investments camied at fair value through profit

or loss [note 16 b)] (224.687) (330,162)
791,843 720,734
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8 OTHER INCOME
2018 2018
RO RO
Revarsals of provision no longer payable 101,339 -
Exchangs gain 10,201 4,700
Miscsllaneous Income 40,582 13,235
152122 17,935
9 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION
2018 2018
RO RO
Salarles and amployes related costs [note 10 a)] 2,084,457 2,250,481
Depreciation [note 24 ¢)] 527,042 162,218
Office expenses 237,832 228,886
Communication and traveling expenses 73,768 87,044
Printing and statlonery 40,811 38, 863
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 33,797
Amortisation of intangibla asssts (note 25) 19,830 -
Provision for Impalrmaent of premium and
Insurance receivables [note 17 e)] 18,429 3,278
Vehicle expenses 11,605 14,928
Office rent - 152,514
3027371 2,930,012

10

SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

&) Salarles and employea related coste Included under general and administration comprise tha

b)

following:
2019 2018
RO RO
Salaries and wages 1,893,213 2,075,750
Confributiona to defined retirement plan for
Omanl employees 130,081 128,347
Cost of end of service benafits for expatriate employess 41.163 46 375
2,064,457 2,250,481
Movemants in expatriate employees' end of service bensfits lisbility during the year Is as follows:
2019 2018
RO RO
At the beginning of the year 242,641 210,234
Expense for the year 41,163 48,375
Settled during the year - (14,068
At the end of the year 283704 242 541
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11 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2018 2018
RO RO
Adveriising and recruliment expenses 52,357 73,065
Professional fees 61,027 44,063
Muscat securities markst and annual general meeting expenses 24,458 31,847
Diractors’ sitting feas [note 32 bj] 36,500 30,500
Corporate social naspanslblliy expenses o 10,000 10.000
184,342 191,275
12 TAXATION
2019 2018
RO RO
Statement of Income
Current tax - 161,833
Prior year (15,841) 12,188
Deferred tax credit (139.076) (4.934)
{164,817} 188,087
Statement of financlal position
Non = current asset
Defarred tax assat 420 487 280,411
Currerd Nabllities
Curment year - 161,833
Prior years R 181,833 20,087
181,833 181,900

The following further notes apply:

a)

b)

Taxation Is provided at 15% (2018 — 15%) on profit for the year adjusted for tax purposss. No
provision for current taxation has been made during the year, as the Company has Incurred a tax
less for the year.

The status of tha ebjections fillad by the Company with the Tax Authority Is as follows:
Muscat insurance Company SAQG

The taxation assessments have been finalised up to 2015 by the Taxation Authority. The
Company had filed an Objection against the assessments for the years 2011 to 20185, the cutcome
of which Is pending to be finallzed at the and of the reporting period. The Management believes
that additional taxes, f any, relating to the unassessed taxation assessments would not be
material to the Company’s financlal position at the and of the reporting perlod.

Muscat insurance Company SAOC

In the previous year, the Company had filed an objection with the Tax Authority for the disputed
balance amount of RO 6,018 that had arlean on completion of the taxation assessments for the
years 2012 to 2014. During the year, the decision on the Objectlon has been recelved partly
allowing the Company's oblection, and the Management has settled the undisputed amount of RO
2,124, During tha year, the Company received the taxation assessment order for the year 2015
with a refund amounting to RO 876. The decision on the Objections with the Supreme Court and

Tax commilttee for the years 2006 to 2011 were pending to be finallzed at the end of the reporting
perlod. Y
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Muscat Insurance Company SAQG
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Notes to the financial statements
12 TAXATION (Continued)

b) {(Continued)

d)

Muscat Life Assurance Company SAQC

in the previous year, the Company had filed an Objection with the Tax Autherity for the disputed
balance amount of RO 12,549 that arose on completlon of the tax asssssments for the years 2006
to 2014. During the vear, the decision on the Objection has been recelved from the Taxation
Authorlty for tha years 2012-2014, partly allowing tha Company's Oblection, and the Management
has settled the undisputed amount of RO 2,102, The declsion on the Oblections filed for the years
2008 1o 2011 and 2015 were pending to be finalized at the end of the reporting period.

The status of the completed tax assessments of the Company and Its subsidiarles prior to the
mergar (note 1) is as follows:

Asgessments
completed fill
Company the year
Muscat Insurance Company SADG 2015
Muscat Insurance Company SAQC 2015
Muscat Life Assurance Company SAQC 2015

The Management belleves that the amount of addlitional taxes, If any, that may becoma payable
on finalization of the assessments for the unassessed years would not be materisl to the
Company's financial position at the end of the reporting period.

The movement in the deferred tax asset during the year ie atiributed to the following items:

Accelerated
capital Carry forward
allowances Provislons losses Others Total
RO RO RO RO RO
At 1 January 2018 271,215 14,262 - - 285,477
Credited to the statement of
income 4442 492 - - 4934
At 31 December 2018 276,857 14,764 - - 290,41
At 31 December 2018 276,657 14,764 - - 280,411
(Charged) / credited fo the
statement of income (4.188) 2.764 143,879  (3,378) 139.076
At 31 December 2018 271,469 17.518 143,879 (3,379 429,487
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financizl statements
13 EARNINGS, NET ASSETS AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE

a)

b)

c)

Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share [8 calculated by dividing the net (loss) / prafit for the year by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

2019 2018
(Loss) / profit for the vear (RO) (748,185) 750,564
Welghted average number of sharee outstanding during the
year 11.025.046 11.026.046
Basic (loss) / eamings per shars (RO) {0.088) 0.068

The weighted average numbers of shares are restated for tha prior period to give effect of bonus
shares Issued during the current perlod.

Net assets per share

Net assets per share ie calculated by dividing the net assets at the end of the reporting period by
the number of shares outstanding as follows:

2018 2018
Net assets (In Rials Omanl) o 16.252 324 17,485.486
Numbear of shares outstanding 11.025.048 10.500.044
Net aseets per share (in Rials Omeni] 1.474 1.866

Proposed stock and cash dividend

Subzequent to the end of the reporting period, the Boerd of Directors have proposed a cash
dividend of RO Nil (2018 — cash dividend of RO 0.050 per share amounting to RO 825,002).

Dividend per ghare I determined by dividing the proposed dividend for the year by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding of 11,025,046 shares (2018 - 10,500,044 shares).

The Board of Diractors have proposed a stock dividend of Nil (2018 - 5% equivalent to 500,002
sharee of RO 1 each) for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
14 BANK BALANGCES AND GASH

2019 2018
RO RO
Call deposits (sea note below) 5,142,905 2,122,143
Current accounts - 476,088 3,833.999
5,618,973 5,766,142
Cash in hand - 5,828 13,896

18

5,824,801 5,770.038

The following further note applles:

Call deposits are placed with local commerclal banks and earn effective interest at 0.75% to 2% per
annum {2018 - 0.75% to 2% per annum).

DEPOSITS
2019 2018
RO RO
Deposhs with banks 7,255,000 8,156,000
Deposits with other financlal institutions 2.650.000 5,650,000
8.805.000 13,805,000
The following further notes apply:

a) Atthe end of the reporting period, deposlis with banks and other financlal institutions have maturity
period of twelve months to thirty-gbx months (2018 — six months to thirty-six months) from the date
of placement.

b) The depaslts held with commerclal banks in Oman carry effective annual interest rates from 3.75%
to 4.90% (2018- 3.50% to 4.75%) and with other financial instituions carry effective annual interest
rates from 4.75% to 5.25% (2018 - 4.10% to 4.80%).

c) At the end of the reporting perlod, tranefer of deposlits In local curency amounting to RO
6,940,000 (2018 — RO 8,055,000} is restricted {nots 21).

d) Atthe end of the reporting period, the maturity profile of the deposits is as follows:

2019 2018
RO RO
Less than 12 months 7,805,000 10,400,000

More than 12 months 2,000,000 3,406,000

9,905,000 13 805,000
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
_Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decamber2019 ]

Notes to the financial statements
16 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2048
Cost Falr value Coat Falr value
RO RO RO RO
Local - quoted investments

Banking and finance 3,431,650 2,801,865 3,431,660 2,732,971
Servicas 679,837 456,442 679,837 812,656
Industrial 101,577 120,875 101,577 160,040
Oll and energy 85,976 116,738 05,875 134,281
Consumer goods 48 381 180,081 48 381 255,081
Mutual funds 25000 27.883 25 000 24 543
4,382 420 3.703.864 4 382 420 3.828 551

Local - unguoted investiments
Services 9,269 21,107 9,269 21,107
Industrial 5,120 2,850 5,120 2,850
Agriculture / food 82.500 43,750 62500 = 43750
76.889 87707 76,889 B87. 707
Total 4 458 300 3,771,671 4.458 308 3,096 258

The following further nctes apply:

a) Details of the Company's Investments for which the Company's holding exceeds 10% of the
mariet vaiue of Its aquity Investment portfolio are:

% of
Investment  Number of Market
potfollo  securities valua Cost
% RO RO RO
31 December 2019
HSBC Bank Oman SAOG 8§7.77% 20,663,865 2800330 3158088
31 December 2018
HSBC Bank Oman SAOG 5445% 20663885 2450002 3155088

b) The movement In Investments at falr value through profit or loss during the year was as follows:

2019 2018

RO RO

At the beginning of the year 3,606,258 4,326,410
Fair valus chanaes durin: the year (note 7) (224 B&T) (330.152)
At the end of the yesar 3.771.571 3,596 258

¢} As st the end of the reporting period, transfer of investments carried at fair value through profit or
loss amounting to RO 3,139,950 (2018 - RO 3,257,602} Is restricted (note 21).

d) Currently the parcentage of HSBC Bank Oman SQAG investment in relation to overail investments
of the Company is 7.76% (2018 — 7.71%) which exceeds the limit prescribed by Regulations for
investing Assets for Insurance Companiss lasusd by the CMA. As per the Regulation, Investments
in shares of any one company should not exceed 5% of the total investments of the insurer. The
Company has applied for exemptions from tha CMA in respact of this investment.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

16

17

INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

@) The falr value hierarchy of the investments is as follows:

2019 2018
RQ RO
Quoted invesimanis
Lavel 1 hlerarchy [note 4 1)] 3,703,864 3,928,551
Unquoted invaesiments
Level 2 hierarchy [note 4 i)] 67,707 a7,707
3771.571 3,096 258
PREMIUM AND INSURANCE RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
RO RO
Premiurmn recelvable 3,199,621 2,120,523
Reinsurance balences recalvable 183,776 814,859
Premiums recsivable from related parties [note 32 )] o 642,073 370.078

4,025,470 3,305,460

Less: provision for Impairment of premium and [hsurance
receivables (116,784 (88,355)

3,008,686 3,207,105

Tha following further notes apply:

a)

The normal credit period allowed to Insurance recelvables and reinsurance companies is 120 days,
after which amounts are considered past due, As at 31 December 2019, recelvables of RO
1,705,925 (2018 - RO 1,918,798) wera fully parforming.

b) The agsing analysis of the gross receivables is as follows:
2018 2018
RO RO
Not pest dus 1,705,925 1,918,766
Past due buf not Impaired
Past dus up to 120 days 1,013,076 422,705
Past due between 121 to 180 days 768,345 500,062
Past due abave 180 days 423 340 385,552
Past due and impaired:
Past due above 180 days 116,784 98.365

4,026,470 3,305,460

Insurance recaivebles and dus from reinsurance companies of RO 2,202,761 (2018 = RO
1,288,309) are past due but not Impalred. These relate to @ number of customers and reinsurers for
whom there is no history of default Most of the credit customers have been dealing with the
Company for over 5 years and losges have occurred infrequently.

d) In eccordance with the debt provisioning policy, the Managemaent has estimated past due debts
amounting to RO 116,784 (2018 --REr9825E) {0 be Impaired and establl aliowance for credit
losses againet such debts. =~ » r"'“—*",a_h /Shm\
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

17

18

PREMIUM AND INSURANCE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

€) The movement In provision for iImpalment of premlum and insurance recelvables during the year

is as follows:
2019 2018
RO RO
At the baeginning of the year 98,355 95,077
Provided during the year (note 8) 18429 3278
At the end of the year 116,784 98,365
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
2019 2018
Cost Falr value Cost Fair value
RO RO RO RO
Unguolad imvestments
Services 402 805 656,815 402 805 §19.810

The following further notes apply:

a) The movement In Investments avallable for sale during the year was as follows:

2019 2018

RO RO

At the beginning of tha year 619,810 473,374
Fair value changes in investments during the vear 37.006 46.436
At the end of the vear £556.815 519.810

b) The fair value of investments available for sale has been determined based on lavel 3 hierarchy

[note 4 i)]

¢) Investment In shares of unquoted companies are measured as Level 3 investments. The valuation
technigues used for valuation of unquoted securities Is as follows:

Unguoted security Valuation technique

Omaen Aviation Services Company Adjustad net asset value of the investee based on the

investee's draft financlal statements. Managsment
considers that tha carrying value of the Investments
appreximates the fair value as significant portfolio of the

Omani Unified Bureau for Orange underlying asseis and liablliles of the two Investee

Card companiea ara aither fair valusd or are in cash and cash
equivalents where falr value epproximate the carrying
value. Therefore, the adjusted net asseis wvalue Is
rapresentative of falr value of the Inveatmenis,

Omen Refnsurance Company Discounted cash flows. The valuation model conslders the

presant value of expected cash flows, discountsd using &
risk adjustad discount rate. The cesh flows are dstermined
by consldering the possible scenarios of forecast revenue
and wearnings before inberest tax depreclation and
amartisation (‘'EBITDA’).
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

—————— — s s e, ——— e
Notes to the financial statements
18 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

21

2018 2018
RO RO
Accrued Interest 307,782 477,363
Cther receivables 485,573 420,129
Precayments 43416 65,035
837,17 953,427

INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY

a) Investments held to maturity comprise the following:

i} Investment in Government Development Bornxds (40th Issue) with Interest at 5.5%, dus to
mature in 2022; and
I} Perpetual bonds with Interast at 7.5%.

b) Falr valus of held to maturity investments as of 31 December 2019 was RO 2.528 mllllon (2018 -
RO 2.276 milllon).

¢) As at 31 December 2019, transfer of investments held to maturity amounting to RO 2,024,007
(2018 - RO 2,033,823) is restricted (note 21).

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OF ASBETS

In accordance with the law goveming the operation of insurance companies within the Sultanate of
Oman, the Company has Identified to the Capital Markst Authorlty certain specific bank deposits,
Invastments carrled at falr valus through profit or loss and investments held to maturity Included in the
statement of financial position at their camying amount of RO 12,103,857 (2018 - RO 11,346,425).
Under the terms of the legisiation, the Company can fransfer these assets only with the prior approval
of the Capital Market Authority.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Frasheld Capital work in
Year 2019 land Buildings progress Total
RO RO RO RO

Cost
At 31 December 2018 1,725,879 450,000 3,778,634 5,054,513
Additions during the year - - 1,516,168 1,616,198
Transfer from property and
equipment (note 24) 984,855 450,000 1,437,142 2,871,997
Transfer from capital work in -
progress - 8.731.874 (6731874
At 31 December 2019 2710.834 7.631.874 - 10,342 708
Depreciation
At 31 Dacember 2018 - 84,565 - 94,565
Chargs for the year - 242,960 - 242 960
Trangfer from property and
equlpment (note 24) B - 108,257 - 108.2567
At 31 December 2019 - 445 782 - 445782
Net book values
At 31 December 2019 2,710.834 7,186,092 - 8,806 928
At 31 Decamber 2018 ;,o‘;f'f:j_):-} 725979 355,435 3778,534 5,859 948
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)
Fraehold Capital work In
Yaar 2018 land Buildings progress Total
RO RO RO RO

Cost

At 31 Decamber 2017 1,725,978 450,000 270,100 2,446,078

Additions during the year - B — 3.508 434 3,508 434

At 31 December 2018 1.725.979 450,000 3.778.534 5.654 513

Depreciation

At 31 December 2017 - 64,565 - 64,565

Charge for the year - 30,000 - 30,000

At 31 Decamber 2018 - 84565 - 84 565

Net book values

At 31 Decembaer 2018 1,726,978 365435 3778.534 5,850,048

At 31 December 2017 1,725 879 385435 270.100 2381514

Tha following further notes apply:

a) Freehold land and buliding in Al Khuwalr, which is used for rental purposes, is entirely classified
&5 investment property. The fair value of the investment property, is RO 2,050,000 based upon an
independent extemal valuation camried at 31 Dacember 2019.

b) During the year, the Company completed construction of a new buliding In Al Khuwair, At the end
of the reporting pericd, the building Is 11% occupied for the Company’s administrative use and
88% used for rental purposes. The freehold land and bullding, which s used for rental purpases,
is clagsifiad as investment property. The fair value of the freshold land and building included under
invesiment property and property and equipment Is RO 12,000,000 based upon an Independent
external valuation carrled at the end of the reporting peariod.

c) Invesiment properties are elther leased to third parties or held for future undetermined use, The
rental ncome earmad from the investment propertias, net of direct operating expenses, is as
follows:

2018 2018

RO RO

Rental income 80,588 70,635
Less:

Manacement fes - (7,478) =

73,080 70,535

d) The lease terms ranges between 1 io § years, with options for extension, Al opersting lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the svent that the lessee axercises Its option to renew.

e) Cummently the percentage of investment in real estate to overall investments of the Company Is

30.668% which exceeds the limit prescribed by Regulation for Invasting Assets of Insurance
Companias lesued by the CMA, As per the Regulation, Investments In real estate shal! not axcesd
20% of the total investments of the insurer.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

22 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continuad}

h
g)

The lessaa does not have an optlon to purchase the property at the expiry of the leage period.

At the end of the reperting perlod, the maturity analysls of the undiscounted lease payments to be
received under the operating lease agresmants is a= follows:

2019 2018

RO RO

Year 1 265,927 -

Year 2 231,347 -

Year 3 123,187 -

Year 4 52,110 -

Years 47,767 -

710|338 -

23 LEASES

a)

b)

d)

e)

The Company enters Into leasing errangements for the branch offices across various locations in
the Sultanate of Oman. The averaga lease ferm for the premiges Is around 2 to 5 years.

At the end of the reporting perlod, right-of-use assets comprise the following:

Year 2019 Office spaces
RO

Arising on adoption of IFRS 16 {note 2.2) 252,224

Depreciation for the year {136,730)

At the end of the year 1156.484

At the end of the reporting period, lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

2019 2018

RC RO

Upto 12 months 60,469 -
Above 12 months 8440 -
69,909 -

The contractual maturity analysis of the undiscounted cash flows of the lease liabllities is as
Tfollows:

2019 2018

RO RO

Upto 1 year 62,363 -

Between 1 year to 5 vears 8.840 -

?1:193 -

The total cash outflow for leases amounted to RO 156,494,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
e — e e e ————————— L

Notes to the financial statements

LEASES {Continuad)

f} Theamounts included in the statement of income relating to leases comprise:

2019 2018

RO RO

Depreciation [nots 24 b)) 136,730 --
Finance costs on lease liability 8785 -

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

a) The details of property, plant and equipment for the years 2018 and 2018 are sat out on pages 58

and 59 respectively.

b) The freehold land and bulldings comprises a portion of the property held by the Company located
at Al Khuwair, Sultanate of Oman. During the current year, the construction of new building has
been completed. Accordingly, an amount equivalent to the percentage change In use, praviously
classified as property and equipment has baen transferred to investment property based on the
areq occupiad for the Company's administrative purposes [note 22 b)].

c) The depreciation charge for the year included under property and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets have bean allocated as follows:

2019 2018
RO RO
Property and aquipment 147,352 132,218
Investment property (note 22) 242,960 30,000
Rlght-of-use assets [note 23 b)| 136,730 -
_527.042 162,218
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible asset
under
2019 License davelopment Total
RO RO RO
Cost
At 31 Dacember 2018 - 102,780 102,780
Additions during the year 61,034 2,207 63,401
Wiitten off during the year (refer note) - (105,147) (105,147)
Transferred from property and equipment
inote 24) 54,670 - 54.670
At 31 December 2019 116704 - 115,704
Amortization
At 31 December 2018 - - -
Trensfer from property and eculpment
(m 24) 6!470 - 6|470
Charge for the vear 19,830 - 19.830
At 31 Dacember 2019 . 26,300 - 26,300
Net book values
At 31 December 2019 80,404 - 88404

At 31 Decamber 2018

102,780 ___ 102.780
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial stataments for the year ended 31 December 2019

————— e e ———
Notes to the financial statements

28

27

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continuaed)

The fallowing further note applies:

During the year 2018, the Company Incurred expenditure towards the development of a new software.
In the year 2019, during the implementation phase, the scftware faced technical Issuss due to which
the Managemeant has written off the entire development costs at the end of the raporting perfod, of

which RO 75,288 |s recoverad from the vendor.
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019 2018
RO RO
Accruals and other payables 2,241,852 2,274,238
Cther creditors 1,928,360 1,313,258
End of service benefits [note 10 b)) 283,704 242,841
Amount due to related parties [note 32 c)) 3.544 798 3,841,671
7,998,714 T.472.006
REINGURANCGCE PAYABLE
2019 2018
RO RO
Premium and loss reserve retained fromn treaty relnsurers 3,862,141 4,968,828
Premium (nat of commission and claims) due to reinsurers 2.164.230 1,927,192
6.026.371 6,893,820
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS
2019 2018
RO RO
Gross
= Qutatanding claime reported [note 6 a)] 10,244,482 11,438,264
- Clalms incurred but nat reported (IBNR) [note § a)] 2,958,016 2,418,632
- Uneamed premium reserve (UPR) [note 6 b)] 10,060,173 7,759,453
- Addiional unexpired risk reserve (AURR) [ncte 8 8)] 71,000 --
Total gross Insurance liabllities 23,323 871 21,614,239
Relnsurance
- Outstanding claims reported [note € a)] 7,047,722 8,850,084
- Clalms incurmed but not reported (IBNR) [note 6 a)} 1,713,187 1,408,607
« Unearned premium raserve (UPR) [note 6 b)) $,301,739 3,455,805
- Additional unexrired risk reserve (AURR! [note § a)] (68,801) -
Total reinsurers’ ahare In Insurance labilitles 14,993, 747 13.723, 496
Net
- Qutstanding claims reported [note € a)] 3,196,760 2577170
= Claims incurred but not reported {IBNR) [nots 6 a)] 1,244,829 1,009,925
- Unearmed premlum reserve {UPR) [note 6 b)) 3,748,434 4,303,648
- Additional unexpired risk reserve (AURR) [note 6 a)] 139,801 -
Total Ingurance llabilities — net 8,320 924 7,880,743
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
20 SHARE CAPITAL

a)

The Company's authorized, issued and paid up capital at the end of the reporting period Is as
follows:

Numbser of shares 2019 2018
RO RO
Authorised = ordinary sharee of RQ 1 each 30,000,000 30,000,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of RG 1 each 11,025.048 10,500,044
b) The details of shareholders who own 10% or mare of the Company's share capital are as follows:
Number of shares 2019 2018
% No. of sheres % No. of shares
Dr. Omar Abdul Munlem Al Zawawi 30.36 3,346 968 30.36 3,187,560
¢) The movement in the number of shares Issued and fully pald — ordinary shares of RO 1 each
during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
RO RO
At 1 January 10,600,044 10,000,042
Bonus shares 525,002 500.002
At 31 Dacember 11,025.048 10,500,044
30 RESERVES
a) Legal reserve

b)

In accordance with Article 132 of the Commerclal Companies Law of Oman, annual appropriation
of 10% of the net profit for the year Is to be made to the legal reserve until the reserve equals one
third of the Company’s capital. The reserve is not available for distribution but can be utlized to set
off against any accumulated losses and Increasing the Company's capital by issuing shares. No
fransfar hes been made durlng the year since the Company has Incumed a loss

Contingency reserve
2018 2018
RO RO
At the beginning of the year 2,043,298 1,711,888
Transfer during the year 428670 331,410
At the end of the year 2,471,868 2,043,208

In accordance with Article 10(bis) (2} {c) and 10{bis) (3) (b} of Regulations for Implementing
Insurence Compenles Law (Ministerial Order 5/80), as amended, 10% of the net outstanding
claims [n case of the general insurance business and 1% of the Iife assurance premium for the
year for Iife insurance business at the reporting date ie transferred from retained earnings to a
contingency raserve. The Company may discontinue this transfer when the reserve aquals to the
issued share capial. No dividend shali be declared In any period until the deflclt in the reserve Is
covared from the retalned profits. The reserves shall not be used except by prior approval of the

CMA,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAQOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

E

3

RESERVES (Continued)

c)

Capitel reserve

The Capital reserve represents the excess over nominal value pald by the initial subscribars
towards public Issue expenses Incurred by the Company.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had contingent liabilities of RO 88,874 (2018 - RO
98,088) in respect of bonds and guarantees Issued Into In the normal course of business from which it
is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise.

The bank facility agreement contains certaln restrictive covenants, which, if violated, could permit the
bank to cancal er reduce the facillties

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)

b)

The Company enters Info transactions In the ordinary course of business with key managemsnt
personnel (including Board of Directors} and entities in which the key Management personne! /
significant sharsholders of the Company have significant influence or control. Prices and termsa of
payment for these transactions are approved by the Management and the Board of Directors.

These transactions are entered [nto on terms and condltions approved by the management and
Beard of Directors and subject to shareholders' approval at the Annual General Meeting.

2019 2018

RO RO

Premiums written from related parties 2,830,121 2,742,147

Claims paid to related parties 283,001 4,025,083

Purchases ¢f goods and services from related parties 119,647 148,728

Dividend income 0,879 7,502

Bonus shares (numbar of aharas) - 75,015

Cther undarwriting Income from related parties 77,715 75,468

Director's sitting fees received 14,000 14,000
The key management personnel compensation for the year comprises:

2019 2018

RO RO

Short term employment banefits 328,960 372,849

End of sarvice benefits 16,07¢ 10,921

Directors’ sitting fees (note 11) ) 36,500 30,500

381,545 414,270

The premiums due from and due to reiated parties are unsecured, repayable on normal credit
{erms and not subject to Interest (2018 — aimllar terma and conditions).
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
33 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
The reconcillation of the (loss) / profit for the year before taxatlon to the cash generated from

operations is shown below:

2019 2018

RO RO

{Losa} / profit before taxation (903,082) 919,631
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 527,042 162,218
Amortization 19,830 -
Loss on disposal of property and equipmant 33,797 -
Unrealised 1oss on Investments st fair velue through proflt or loss 224,687 330,1
Amartisatian of premium on held to maturity insruments 9,966 9,818
Charge for amployeas® end of service benefits 41,183 46,375
Provision for Impaiment of premium and Insurance recelvables 18,429 3,278
Interest income (860,370) (781,370)
Dividend Income (270,057) {203,797)
Rental income (gross) {80,568) (70,535)
Finance cost 55.281 37.692
Operating {loss) / proflt before payment of end of sarvice
benefits, paymant of income tax and working capltal changes (992,862) 453,460
Working capital changas:
Pramiums and insurance receivable {720,010) (B07,764)
Other recelvables and prepaymaents (87,930) 810,414
Reinsurance contracts (1,270,261} 4,254 914
Accruals and other payables 485,545 2,447,194
Reinsurance payable {BE7,449) 1,420,948
Ingurance contracts B 1.708.432 (3.018 1986}
Cash (used In) / generated from operations (1,743,625) 5360.970

34 SEGMENT INFORMATION
Bus!/ness segments - primary reporting segment
The Company has two reportable businass sagments, as described balow, which are the Company’s
sirataglc business units. The strateglc business units offer different products and services, and are
managed separaiely because they require different marketing strategles. For each of the strategic
units, the Company’s CEO reviews the internal management reports on a regular basis.
The Company has tha following operating segments:
General insurance

General business includes insurance of motor; fire, marine, engineering, workmen compensation and
general accldent,

Life inaurance

Life insurance business relales to the Insurance of the life and medical of an individual or Company
and the credlt life policies.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2019
Generai Life
insurance insurance Total
RO RO RO
Grose writtsn premiums ariging from Insurance
contracts Issued 156,008,117 3,442,199 18,450,318
Meovement in uneamed premium reserve 845 801 (3.236.321) (2,290,720}
Insurance premium revenus samaed 15.953.718 205,878 186,159,596
Premium ceded to relnsurers on Insurance
contracis issued {0,474,734) (2,001,531) {11,476,265)
Movement in reinsurance share of uneamed
pramium reserve (341,558) 3.187.489 2845904
Insurance premlum cedsd to reinsurers (9,816,289) 1,185,958 (8.830,331)
Net premium revenus earned 6.137.429 1,391,838 7,629,265
Gross claims sattied {9,782,628) (1,924,048) (11,708,674)
Relnsurance share of gross clalms settled 4 860,026 742,373 5.602.404
Net claims settied (4,922,800) (1,181,670) (6,104,270)
Movement in net outstanding claims (876820, = (117.574) (994,304}
Net claims Incurred (8,790,420) (1.299,244) (7,098,664)
Commission income 802,114 186,052 080,066
Commission expense  |eaz7) (65,256) (158,527
Net commission incoma 708,643 121,606 830,539
Other underwriting Income = 158,471 338 188,807
Underwriting results 1,205,323 214,624 1,419,947
Invastment Incoma — nat 891,805 100,238 791,843
Other income 152 122 - 152122
2,048,050 314,882 2 363_,012
General and adminisiration expenses (2,723,577) {303,704) (3,027,371)
Other operating expenses (187.3586) (16086} (184.342)
(2,890,933) (320.760) (3211,713)
Operating (loss) / profit {841,883) (5,918) {847,801)
Finance cosis (55.281) - (55.281)
{Loas) / profit before taxation (867,164) (5,918) {903,082)
Taxation 183412 B 1.805 154,917
(Losa)} ! profit for the year (743,752) (4,413) (748,165)
Other comprehansive Income;
Patentially reclassifiable !o the Income
sfatement.
Feir value change in Investments avallable for
sale N 37.006 - 37.006
(708,747 (4.413) (711,160)
Segment assots 47,388,907 6,445,918 53832822
Segment llabllides .-H“‘“““ 35,018,168 2 564,329 37,560,498
T -U-c ™,

wlay
Box: 933, P.Godw: 112

‘bog:"%‘m sunmmmn-n 9

,..r'
Jx ) WY el AT Dyl “‘




Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

General
insurance  Life insurance Total
2018 2018 2018
RO RO RO
Grose written premiums arising from Insurance
contracts [ssued 17,033,308 1,654,409 18,587,717
Movement in unearned premium reserve 2.665.248 658.717 3.323.965
Insurance premium revenus earned 19.698.556 2213128 21,911,682
Premium ceded fo reinsurers on Insurance
contracts issued (10,183,682) {568,905) (10,749,487)
Movement in reinsurance share of uneamed
premium reserve (3,260,055 (320.787) _(2.580,852)
Insurance premium coeded to reinsurers (13.443,837) (888,702 (14,330,339)
Net premium uwnumﬂd B 6,254,918 1,326,424 7,581,343
Grosas claims settied {11,843,382) {1,635,768) (13,678,160)
Reinsurance share of gross claims settied 7,857 438 750694 8.708.132
Net clalms settied (3,965,944) (885,074} (4,871,018)
Movement In net outstanding ¢laims {942,886) (38,945) (979.831)
Nat claims Incurred (4,928 830) (922,019 (3,850,849
Comnmisgion income 1,371,238 180,880 1,552,008
Commission expense (73,918 184.836) L138 763)
Net commission income 1.297.320 116,025 1.413.345
Other underwriting Income 188,766 338 186,102
Underwriting resulis 2,819,178 820,766 3,339,941
Invesiment Income — net 644,877 84,857 720,734
Other Incoma 17,835 -- 17,935
3,481,887 605823 4,087,610
General and administration expenses {2,645,111) (293,601) (2,939,012)
Other opereting expenses (172,147) (19128, (191,275)
(2817288 (313.028) (3 130.287)
Operating profit 664,729 292,504 087,923
Finance costs = (37.602) - (37,692
Profit before taxation &27,037 292,504 819,531
Taxation (118030} (51,087 (169.067)
Profit for the year 509,007 241,657 760,584
Other comprehensive Income:
Polentlally reclassiffable fo the Income
sfatement:
Falr value change in Investments avallable for
sale 41,321 5115 48,
850,328 246,672 797,000
Segment assets 40.544 407 4,106.044 53,650,451
ment llabllities 34,166,300 19955008 36,161,088
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect the
Company's sharehoklers from events that hinder the sustainable schievement of the set financial
performance objectives. Key management recognises the critical importance of having afflelent and
affective risk management systems In place.

The Company has an Executiva Committee with clear terms of reference from the Board of Directors.
Thie is In addition to a clear organisational structure with documented delegated authorifies and
responslbllities from the Board of Directors to the Executive Committee and senior managers.

The risk under any insurance contract is the possibllity that the Insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insuranca contract, this risk
ls random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of Insurence contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisloning, the principal risk that the Company faces under its Insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments may exceed the carrying amount of the Insurance liabilities. This could
oceur bacausea the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to
year from the estimate established using statistical techniques.

Thes Company’s cbjectives In managing risks are o take & conservative approach fo underwriting,
which means review of all aspects about a risk prior to acceptance; retaining experlenced and
knowledgeable underwritars; and having underwriting authorities in place which ara checked by
infemal audite. The Company ensures that risks are miigated with first class reinsurance security,
pre-underwriting surveys and clalms history reviews. The estmates and assumptlons thet have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounta of ageats and liabllities within
the next financial year are discussad In note 3.

The Company only accepts Insurance risk within the Sultanate of Oman. The Company’s net account
In terms of aggregate risk retention is well protected with substantial event limits plus catestrophe
excess of logs reinsurance per class of business writtan.

Frequency and amounts of claims

The frequancy and amounts of claims can be affected by several factors.

General insurance

Motor

For motor contracts the maln risis are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair

of vehicles. The level of court awards for deaths and to injured partiss and the replacement costs of
motor vehicles are the koy factors that influence the level of claims,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

35 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
INSURANCE RISK (Continued)
Proparty

For proparty insurance contracts the meain risks are fira and business Intermuption.

Thesa coniracts are underwritten by reference to the replacement value of the propertles and contents
insured. The cost of rebuilding properties and obiaining replacement contents and the time taken to
reatart operations which leads to business Interruptions are the maln factors that influence the level of
claims,

For marine insurance tha maln risks are loss or damage to marine eraft and accidents resulting in the
ictal or partial loss of cargoes. The underwriting strategy for the marine class of business is to ansure
that policies are well diversified in terms of vessels and shipping routes covered.

Life insurance

The Company underwrites malnly under the Group credit life, Group Iife end Group mediecal risks.
Claims are normally advised and settled within cne year of the insured svent taking place. This helps to
mitigate insuranca risk.

Group credit Ife

Group credit assurance policy Is designed to fulfil the borrower's loan obligation in the event that the
barrower dies or becomes disabled.

Group Iife and Group medical

These contracts are underwritten by reference to the sum assured of the indviduals belonging to an
affinity group inaurad.

Relnsurance risk

In common with other Insurance companies, to minimise financial exposure arising from large claims,
the Company, in the normal course of businesa, enters into agreements with other parties for
relnsurance purposas. Such relnsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business,
gllows management to conirol sxposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide
addiional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the relnsurance g affected under freaty,
facultative and excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts.

To minimise its exposurs to significant losses from reinsurer Insoivencles, the Company evaluates the
financial condition of it reinaurers and monitors concentraions of credit risk arising from similar
geographlc ragions, activities or aconomic characteristics of the relnsurers.

Relnsurance ceded contracts do not relleve the Company from Ilts obligations to policyholders and as
a result the Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to tha axtent that
the reinsurer falls to mest the obligations under the relnsurance agreements. The concentration of
credlt risk exposure in this connection is:

+ The flve largest relnsurers account for 88% of the credit exposure at 31 Dacember 2018 in case of
the ganaral Insurance business (2018 - 82%).

¢ The life insurance business is exposed to material concentration of reinsurance risk In respect of
the Group Credit Lifa schema. The credit risk In this connection Is that one ¢ r accounts for
T7% of the cradlt exposurg.at'=+ embec=2019 {2018 - T9%,).




Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements

35 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
INSURANCE RISK {Continued)
Regulatory framework

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulstory raquirements within the juriadictions
whers It operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also
impose certain resirictive provisions such as capltal adequacy to minimise the risk of default and
insolvency on the part of the nsurance companies and to enable them to meet unforeseen llablliies 8s

these arige.
The Company has a surplus over the required solvency margin as per the Insurance Company Law:

¢ In case of the general Insurance, a surplus of RO 687,402 at 31 December 2019 (2016 - RO
4,857,031).
» in case of life insurance, a surplus of RO 904,266 at 31 December 2019 (2018 - RO 1,104,129).

FINANCIAL RISK

The Company's aciivities expoza it to varlous financlal risks, primarily being, market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk
management is carrled out internally in accordence with tha policles approved by the Company.

a) Market risk

Cumrency risk

The Company is exposaed to foreign exchange risk arising primarlly with respect to the bank
balances and cash hek! in US Dollar. As the Omani Rial |8 pegged against the US Dollar, the
Management does not believe that the Company Is exposed to any material currency risk.

At the end of the reporting pariod, the Company had cash and cash equivalents denominated In
US Dollars amounting to RO 3,265,783 (2018 = RO 3,796,409)

interest rate risk
The Company is expoeed to interest rate risk on interest bearing assets {cell deposit accounts,
fixed deposits and held to maturity Investments).

The Management analyses Iis Interest rate exposure on a regulsr basls, renegotiates interest
rates at tarms favorable to the Company and ensures that they are as far as possible on a fixed
rate basls. The bank deposits, deposit with other financial insfitutions and held to maturity
investments are at fixed interest rates. The Company Is therefore not exposed to significant
intarest rate risk due to fluctuation in the market interest rate,

For avery 0.5% change in interest rate, the impact on the statement of comprehensive incoma will
approximate to RO 86,621 {2018 — RO 88,805) based on the level of financlal assets {net} at the

end of tha reparting pearied.

Price risk

The Company’s inveetments are subject o market price risk arising from uncertainties about
future prices of equities. Market price risk Is managed through the diversification of the
investments, thereby avoiding concantration of investmants in individual securities. Furthermaone,
the Company’s investments ars managed accerding to the guidelines provided by Regulations for
Investing Assets for Insurance Companies issusd by the CMA.

e T 0N

q

e g B,
' LRLERTYUIC o TS N
(4  ses e k| . gielildug Pege 51
A\ o P.O.Box: 633, PCode: 1" 4
%I:ul.hlhnuﬂbmm o,
-, '| mnh‘-ummm‘
- E.QTEEH_'!_P‘%F!"" &unm&

s



Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
35 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)
a) Market sk {Continued)
Price risk (Continued)

b)

The Company's quoted investments are publicly traded in the Muscat Securities Market.
Assuming that

s the MSM index would have changed by 10%;

o the Company's equity instruments move according with the historical correlation with the
Index; and

» all other variables are constant

the impact on the net profit of the Company would approximate fo RO 370,386 (2018 — RO
302,856).

Credit risk

Credl risk Is the risk of finangial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financlal Instrument fais fo
meet Its contractual obligations. The carrying amount of the financial assets, other than those
releting to reinsurance confracts, represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company has &
credit policy in place and exposurs to credlt risk I8 monitored on receivables on a regular basis
The Company also ensures that bank balances and deposits are placed with reputable financlal
Institutions.

The maximum exposure to cradit risk at the end of the reporting pariod was as follows;

2018 2018

RO RO

Cash aquivalents 5,618,073 5,756,142
Premium and Insurance recalveble 3,808,686 3,207,105
Investments held to maturity 2,276,338 2,033,823
Other receivables (excluding prepayments) 793,755 897,482
Relnsurance contracts 14,993,747 13,723,496
Deposlis 9906 000 13,805,000

37498497  30.423,058

The table below presents an analysis of balances with banks at the end of the reparting perlod:

2019 2018

RO RO

P-2 - 114,125
P-3 5,552,068 5,641,028
NP 66,105 101
Not rated - 888

5.618.973 5.756,142
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
35 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK {Continued)
b) CredH risk (Continued)
The following teble shows the placements of deposits held with counterparties at the end of the

reporting period:
2019 2018
RO RO
Baa3d - 2,900,000
Ba1 2,000,000 5,255,000
Not rated 2,850,000 5,650,000

9,805,000 13,805,000

The following table shows tha rating of bonds held to maturity at the end of the reporting period:

2018 2018
RC RO
Baa3 - 2,033,823
Ba1 2,024,007 -
Not rated 252,329 -
2,276,336 2,033,823

Pramium and Insurance recelvabies

Premlum and Insurance receivable comprise a number of customars within Oman and local and
forelgn reinsurers. The Company monitors thase receivables on a regular basis. Most of the credit
customers have been desaling with the Company for over 5 years and losses have occurred
infrequently. The Company establishes an allowance for Impairment that represents its estimate
of likely losses in respect of thess receivable accounts. With respect to reinsurers, as per
Company policy of managing Insurance rigks, such contracts ara placed only with intemationally
reputed well rated rainsurers.

The other classes within receivables do not contain Impaired assets. The Company doas not hold
any collateral as security.

Premium receivabies from related parties

Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. There have been
no guarantees provided or received for any related party recelvables. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company has not established any provision for doubtful debts relating to
amounts owed by related parties as the payment history has been good. This assessment is
undertaken for each financial period through examining the financial position of the relatad party
and the market in which the relatad party operates.
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
35 RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK (Continued)
b} Gredh risk (Continued)
Other recelvables (Continued)
Thase are short term racelvables and the Management doas not consider there to be significant
credlt rigk associated with them.

The maximum credit exposure to credit risk for premium and Insurance receivables (Including
reinsurance recaivable) at the end of the reporting period by geographic region was as balow:

20189 2018
RO RO
Oman 3,749,087 2,415,192
Europe 133,541 664,828
Middle East 15,278 36,305
America and Canada 10,238 1,210
Rest of Asla 542 89,570
3,908,668 3,207,105
The maximum credit exposure to credit riek at the end of the reporting period by type was as

follows:
2019 2018
RO RO
Indlviduals and corporate cllents 3,724,910 2,302,246
Reinsurers 183,776 814 859
3,908,686 3,207,106

c} Liquidity risk

The Management montors liquidity requirements on a regular basis and ensures that sufflcient
funde are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk of
maintaining adaquate reserves and banking facllittes by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows.

Carrying Six months Between six to Not fixed
31 Decomber 2019 valua orless twelve months maturity
RO RO RO RO
Cther payable and accruals
{excluding end of service banefits
end advance rent recelved) 7,715,010 3,814,316 3,900,694 -
Premium and loss reserve
retained from tresty relnsurers 3,882,141 3,048,701 813,440 -
Premium (net of commission and
claims) due to reinsurers 2,184,230 1,895,402 168,828 -
Insurance contracts 23,323,671 23,323,671
Lesse lighllity 88,910 3708 23161 9,440
37,134,962 8,805,728 4,906,123 23.333,111
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Muscat Insurance Company SAQOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
35 RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuad)
FINANCIAL RISK {Continued)
¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Carrying Sixmonths Batwoen six to Not fixed

31 Decembar 2018 value orless twelve months maturity
RO RO RO RO

Other payable and accruals

{excluding end of service benefits

and advance rent raceived) 7,242,815 6,806,105 348,710 -

Premium and loss resarve

retained from treaty raeinsurers 4,986,628 4,029,562 937,086 -

Premium {net of commisslon and

claims} due to reinsurers 1,827,192 1,831,448 85,746 -

Insurance contracts 21614230 - — 21.614.239

35,750,874 12,757,113 1,378.622 21,614,239

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk Is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events.
When controls fail to perform, operational riske can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory Implications or can lead to financlal loss.

The Company cannct expect to eliminets all operational risks, but by Initiating a rigorous conbrol
framework and by monltoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the
risks.

The Company has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties,
access controls, authorisation and reconclllation procedures, staff training and assessment processes
etc. with a compllance and internal audit framework. Business riske such as changes In environment,
tachnology and the Industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting
process.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Externally Imposed capltal requirements are set and regulated by the Capital Market Authority and
other relsvant regulators, to ensure sufficlent solvency margins. Further objectives are set by the
Company to maintaln a strong financtal position, credit rating and healthy capital ratlos o support its
business objectives and maximize shareholders value,

The Company's objectlves when managing capital is to enable the entity to continue as a going
concem, in order 1o provide adequate returns to the Sharehokiers and to maintain an optimal capltal
strueture to reduce the cost of capital. Further, the Insurance Companles Law of Oman, 1979, as
amended, requires a minimum capital of RO 10 million for Insurance companies.

The Company has an internal risk management framework for identifying risks to which each of Its
business units and the Company as a whole are exposed, quantifying their Impact on economic
capltal. The intemnal framewark estimates indicate how much capital is needed to mitigate the risk of
insolvency to a selected remote leval of risk applled to a number of tests (both financial and non-
financlal) on tha capital position of the business. in the contaxt of managing capHal, the Company has
covenanted with banks providing external debt to maintaln speclfied leverage ratios. The Company
manages ks capltal requireaments by assessing shorifalls betweean reported and required capital levals
on a regular basia. In order to malntain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to the shar 19_§_rs, return capital to shareholders or raise additional capital,
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Muscat Insurance Company SAOG
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes to the financial statements
FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial assets have been applied to the line ltems balow:

Financial Avallable-for-
Loansand  Held-to- mssetsst  Si° ﬂ""'“"f |
31 December 2019 recaivables  maturity FVPL Total
RO RO RO RO RO
Bank balances and cash 5,824,801 - - — 5,624,801
Investrants at fair value
through profit or loas - - 3,771,671 - 3771571
Premium and Insurance
recelvables 3,808,688 - - - 3,908,886
Available-for-sale Investments - - - 556,815 556,816
Other receivables 837,171 - - - 837,171
Reinaurers’ contracts 14,993,747 - - — 14983747
Deapaosits 9,905,000 - - 9,805,000
Investments held to maturity - 2276338 - — 2376336
35260405 2276338 3771.571 566815 41.874.127
Financial Avlall:bla-fqr-l
Loans and Heldto- assetsat 9© "‘:s:c';
31 December 2018 receivebles  meturity FVPL e Total
RO RO RO RO RO
Bank balances and ¢ash 5,770,038 -- - - 5,770,038
Investmenis at fair value
through profit or loss - - 3,996,268 - 3,008,258
Premium and Insurance
recelvables 3,207,105 - - - - 3,207,106
Avallable-for-sale Investmeants - -- - 519,810 519,610
Other receivables 866,152 - e - 666,152
Relnsurers’ contracts 13,723,486 - - - 13,723,408
Deposlts 13,805,000 - - - 13,805,000
Investments held to maturty — 2033,823 - - 2.033.823
37,171,791 2,033,823 3,996,258 518,810 43,721,682
COMPARATIVES

Previous year flgures have been regrouped or reclassified, wherevar necessary, so that they conform
to the presentation edopted In the financial statements for the current year.
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